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EAST WEST HOTELS LTD.

EAST WEST HOTELS LIMITED
Regd. Off: Gateway Hotel, 66, Residency Road, Bangalore — 560 025.
Tel: 66604545

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE is hereby given that the 52nd Annual General Meeting ("AGM") of East West Hotels
Limited the Company for the financials year-2020-21 will be held on Thursday the 30th
September 2021 at 11.00 am through Videa Conferencing (“VC") to transact the following
business:

Ordinary Business:

1.

To receive, consider and adopt the audited Balance Sheet as at 31" March 2021
and the audited Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow Statement for the
year ended on that date together with the reports of the directors along with the
annexures and auditors thereon;

Members are requested to consider and if thought fit, to pass the following
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT the audited standalone financial statements of the Company
including the Balance Sheet as atMarch 31, 2021, the statement of profit and loss,
the cash flow statement for the year ended on that date, notes to financial
statements, reports of the Board and Auditor's thereon be and are hereby
received, considered and adopted.”

To declare a final dividend on equity shares for the financial year ended 31" March,
2021.

Members are requested to consider and if thought fit, to pass the following
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:;

“RESOLVED THAT a final dividend of Rs 2.50 per equity share (Rupee two and paise
fifty) of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up be and is hereby declared for the financial year
2020-21"

To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Jagannathan Suri(DIN: 00265983), who
retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

Members are requested to consider and if thought fit, to pass the following
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Seclion 152 and other
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Jagannathan Suri(DIN:
00265983) who retires by rotation, be and is hereby re-appointed as Director liable
to retire by rotation”.
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4, To ratify the appointment of M/S AN Jambunathan& Co., Chartered
Accountants, as Auditors of the company from the conclusion of this annual
general meeting till the conclusion of the next annual general meeting and to fix
their remuneration

Members are requested to consider and if thought fit, to pass the following
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 139(8) and other
applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there
under as amended from time to time or any other Law for the time being in force
(including any statutory modification or amendment thereto or re-enactment
thereof for the time being in force), hereby ratify appointment of M/S. AN
Jambunathan& Co., Chartered Accountants (Reg. No. 0012508), as the
Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold office from the conclusion of this
Annual General Meeting until the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting
on such remuneration, fee and out of pocket expenses as shall be fixed by the
board of Directors of the company in consultation with Auditors.”

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Prem Kumar Menon
Executive Chairman

Place: Bangalore
Date: 03.09.2021
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NOTES:

1. Asyou are aware, in view of the situation arising due to COVID-19 global pandemic,
the general meetings of the companies shall be conducted as per the guidelines issued by
the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) vide Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 8, 2020,
Circular No.17/2020 dated April 13, 2020 and Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 05, 2020.
The forthcoming AGM will thus be held through video conferencing (VC) or other audio
visual means (OAVM). Hence, Members can attend and participate in the ensuing AGM
through VC/OAVM.

2. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule
20 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and
Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015
(as amended), and MCA Circulars dated April 08, 2020, April 13, 2020 and May 05, 2020
the Company is providing facility of remote e-voting to its Members in respect of the
business to be transacted at the AGM. For this purpose, the Company has entered into an
agreement with Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) for facilitating voting
through electronic means, as the authorized e-Voting's agency. The facility of casting
votes by a member using remote e-voting as well as the e-voting system on the date of the
AGM will be provided by CDSL.

3. The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and after
the scheduled time of the commencement of the Meeling by following the procedure
mentioned in the Notice. The facility of participation at the AGM through VC/OAVM will be
made available to atleast 1000 members on first come first served basis. This will not
include large Shareholders (Shareholders holding 2% or more shareholding), Promoters,
Institutional Investors, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons of the
Audit Committee, MNomination and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders
Relationship Committee, Auditors efc. who are allowed to attend the AGM without
restriction on account of first come first served basis.

4 The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted
for the purpose of ascertaining the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act,
2013.

5. Pursuant to MCA Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, the facility to appoint
proxy to attend and casl vote for the members is not available for this AGM. However, in
pursuance of Section 112 and Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013, representatives of
the members such as the President of India or the Governor of a State or body corporate
can attend the AGM through VC/OAVM and cast their votes through e-voting.

6. Inline with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13,
2020, the Notice calling the AGM has been uploaded on the website of the Company at
www.eastwesthotelsltd.com. The AGM Notice is also disseminated on the website of
CDSL (agency for providing the Remote e-Voting facility and e-voting system during the
AGM)i.e. www.evotingindia.com.
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10.

1

12.

13.

14,

The AGM has been convened through VC/OAVM in compliance with applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with MCA Circular No. 14/2020 dated April
8, 2020 and MCA Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020 and MCA Circular No.
20/2020 dated May 05, 2020.

In continuation of this Ministry's General Circular No. 20/2020, dated 05th May, 2020
and after due examination, it has been decided to allow companies whose AGMs were
due to be held in the year 2020, or become due in the year 2021, to conduct their AGMs
on or before 31.12.2021, in accordance with the requirements provided in paragraphs
3 and 4 of the General Circular No. 20/2020 as per MCA circular no. 02/2021 dated
January,13,2021.

The scrutinizer will submit the report to the Chairman of the Company ("the Chairman™)
or to any other person authorized by the Chairman after the completion of the scrutiny
of the e-voling (votes casted during the AGM and votes casted through remote e-
voting), not later than 48 hours from the conclusion of the AGM. The results declared
along with scrutinizer's report shall be communicated to the CDSL and will also be
displayed on company's website

The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain
closed from 24-09-2021 to 30-09-2021 (both days inclusive).

. The proceedings of the AGM shall be deemed to be conducted at the Registered Office

of the Company situated at 66 Residency Road, Bangalore - Kamataka-560025,
Karnataka, India, which shall be the deemed Venue of the AGM. Since the AGM will be
held through VC, the Route Map is not annexed in this Notice.

In case of Joint Holders attending the AGM, only such Joint Holder whose name
appear firstin the order of names will be entitled to vote.

Institutional / Corporate members (i.e. other than individuals / HUF, NRI, etc.) are
required to send a scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of its Board or governing body
Resolution/Authorization etc., authorizing its representative to attend the AGM on its
behaif and to vote electronically either during the remote e-voting period or during the
AGM. The said Resolution/Authorization should be sent electronically through their
registered email address to the Scrutinizer at heeravathi ki@gmail.com with a copy
marked to eastwesthotels@gmail.com..

The Company has appointed Mrs Heeravathi, Practicing Company Secretary,
Bengaluru (M.No 15718 , CP 8715) as Scrutinizer to scrutinize the e-voting process in
fair and transparent manner.
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15.

16.

17.

18.

(i)

(if)

A member logging-in to the VC facility using the remote e-voting credentials shall be
considered for record of attendance of such member at the AGM and such member
attending the AGM shall be counted for the purpose of reckoning the quorum under
Section 103 of the Act.

The Board of Directors has recommended a final dividend of Rs.2.50 (Rupees two &
paise fifty only) per equity share of Rs10/- each for the financial year ended March 31,
2021 subject to the approval of the members at the ensuing AGM. Dividend will be paid
as per the mandate registered with the Company or with their respective Depository
Participants through electronic clearing service or warrants/at-par cheques or demand
drafts, as the case may be.

Dividend income is taxable in the hands of the members and the Company is required
to deduct tax at source ("TDS") from dividend paid to the members at prescribed rates
inthe Income Tax Act, 1961. In general, no tax will be deducted on payment of dividend
to category of members who are resident individuals (with valid PAN details updated in
their folio/client 1D records) and the total dividend amount payable to them does nat
exceed Rs.5,000/-. Members not falling in the said category, can contact company at
eastwesthotels@gmail.com.

Members are requested to note that dividends, if not encashed for a consecutive
period of 7 years from the date of transfer to Unpaid Dividend Account of the Company,
are liable to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund (*IEPF).
Further, the shares in respect of such unclaimed dividends are also liable to be
transferred to the demat account of the |EPF Authority. In view of this,
members/claimants are requested to claim their dividends from the Company within
the stipulated timeline.

THE INSTRUCTIONS OF SHAREHOLDERS FOR E-VOTING AND JOINING
VIRTUAL MEETINGS ARE AS UNDER:

The voting period begins on 27-09-2021 (9:00 AM) and ends on 29-08-2021 (5:00
PM). During this period shareholders' of the Company, holding shares either in
physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date (record date) of 23-09-
2021may cast their vote electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL
for voting thereafter.

Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeting date would not be entitied to
vote at the meeting venue.

(ii) Pursuant to SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated

09.12.2020, under Regulation 44 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, listed entities are
required to provide remote e-voting facility to its shareholders, in respect of all
shareholders’ resolutions. However, it has been observed that the participation by the
public non-institutional shareholders/retail shareholders is at a negligible level.
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Currently, thera are multiple e-voting service providers (ESPs) providing e-voting
facility to listed entities in India. This necessitates registration on various ESPs and
maintenance of multiple user IDs and passwords by the shareholders.

In order to increase the efficiency of the voting process, pursuant to a public
consultation, it has been decided to enable e-voling to all the demat account
holders, by way of a single login credential, through their demat accounts/
websites of Depositories/ Depository Participants. Demat account holders would
be able to cast their vote without having to register again with the ESPs, thereby, not
only facilitating seamless authentication but also enhancing ease and convenience of
participating in e-voting process.

{iv) In terms of SEBI circular no. SEBIYHO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242dated December
9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders

holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account
maintained with Depositaries and Depository Participants, Shareholders are advised
to update their mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts in order to access
e-Voting facility.

Pursuantto abovesaid SEBI Circular, Legin method for e-Voting and joining virtual
meetings for Individual shareholders holding securities in Demat mode
CDSL/NSDL is given below:

Type of Login Method
shareholders

1) Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login through their
Individual existing user id and password. Option will be made available to reach e-
Voting page without any further authentication. The URL for users to login to
Shareholders , ) ' _ i i
holding Easi / Easiest are hitps://web.cdslindia.com/myeasihomeflogin or visit
securilies in www.cdslindia.com and click on Login icon and select New Syslem Myeasi.
Demat mode
with CDSL

2) After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-Voting
option for eligible companies where the evoling is in progress as per the
information provided by company. On clicking the evoting option, the user will
be able to see e-Voting page of the e-Voting service provider for casting your
vole during the remole e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting
during the meeting. Additionally, there is also links provided to access the
system of all e-Voting Service Providers le.
COSLNSDL/KARVY/LINKINTIME, so that the user can visit the e-Voting
service providers' website directly.




EAST WEST HOTELS LTD.

Type of
shareholders

Login Method

3)

4)

If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest. option to register is available at
hitps:/'web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/Eas| Registration

Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing Demat
Account Number and PAN No. from a e-Voling link available on
www.cdslindia.com home page or click on
hitps:/fevoting cdslindia com/Evoting/Evolinglogin =~ The  system  will
authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as
recorded in the Demat Account. After successful authentication, user will be
able to see the e-Voting option where the evoting is in progress and also able
to directly access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers.

Individual
Shareholders
holding
securilies in
demat mode
with NSDL

1

2)

3)

If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit the e-
Services website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL:
hitps://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.
Once the home page of e-Services is launched, click on the “Beneficial
Owner” icon under “Login” which is available under IDeAS’ section. A new
screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID and Password. After
successful authentication, you will be able o see e-Voting services. Click on
“Access to e-Voting” under e-Voling services and you will be able to see e-
Vioting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider name and
you will be re-directed to e-Voling service provider website for casting your
vole during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meefing & voling
during the meeting.

If the user is nol registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is
available at hiips:/eservices.nsdl.com. Select “Register Online for |DeAS
‘Portal or click  at hitps://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReq.jsp

Visit the e-Vioting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the
following URL: hitps://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer
or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Vieting system is launched, click on
the icon “Login™ which is available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section, A
new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen
digit demat account number hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and a
Verification Code as shown on the screen. After successful authentication,
you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting
page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider name and you will
be redirected to e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote during
the remote e-Vioting period or joining vidual meeting & voting during the
meeting
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Type of Login Method

shareholders

Indlvidual You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through
Shareholders your Depository Participant registerad with NSDL/CDSL for e-Vaoting facility.
(holding Afler Successful login, you will be able lo see e-Voting option. Once you click
securities  in an e-\Voting option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site aller
demat mode) successful authentication, wherein you can see e-Violing feature. Click on
login  through company name or e-Voling service provider name and you will be redirected
their to e-Voting service provider website for casting your vole during the remote
Depository e-Voling pericd or joining virtual meating & voting during the meeting.

ssues relmed o 4ggm lhrnggh Elepnr.sltarv [K=3 CDSL and NSDL

Login type

| Helpdesk datails

Individual Sharaholders holding ' Members facing any lechnical issue in login
securities in Demat mode with CDSL | can contact COSL helpdesk by sending a

| request at helpdesk. evoling@cdslindia.comor
| contact at 022- 23058738 and 22-23058542-
43.

Individual Shareholders holding | Members facing any lechnical issue In login
securities in Demat mode with NSDL | can contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a

| request at evoting@nsdl.coin or call at tol
| free no.: 1800 1020 980 and 1800 22 44 30

(v}  Login method for e-Vioting and joining virual meetings for Physical shareholders and
shareholders other than individual holding in Demat form.

1) The shareholders should log on lo the e-voling website www.evolingindia.com.

2) Click on “Shareholders™ module.

3) Mow enter your User ID
a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary 1D,
b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client 1D,
£. Shareholdars holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number
registerad with the Company.

4) Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login.

§) If you are holding shares in demal form and had logged on to www evolingindia. com and
voted on an earlier e-voting of any company, then your axisting password [s to be used.
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6) If you are

a first-time user follow the steps given balow:

| For Physical shareholders and other than individual shareholders
| holding shares in Demat,

PAN

Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric “PAN issued by Income Tax
Department (Applicable for both demat shareholdars as well as physical
sharaholdars)

Bank

OR
of
(DOB)

+«  Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the
Company/Depository  Participant are requested 10 use the
saquence numbar senl by Company/RTA or contacl
Company/RTA.

Dividend | Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) |

as recorded in your demat account or in the company records in order (o

Datails login.

Date + Il both the details are nol recorded with the depository or
Birth company, please enter the member id / folic number in the
Dividend Bank delalls fleld,

{vi)
(vii)

(wili)

{ix)
(%)

{x1)

(xii)

(i)

After entering these detalls appropriately, click on "SUBMIT tab,

Shareholders holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company
selection screen. However, shareholders holding shares in demat form will now reach
‘Password Creation’ menu wherein they are reguired to mandatorily enter their login
password in the new password field. Kindly note that this password is o be also usad by
the demat holders for voting for resolutions of any other company on which they are
eligible to vole, provided that company opts for e-voting through CDSL platform. It is
strongly recommended nol 1o share your password with any other person and lake
utmaost care to keap your password confidential,

For shareholders holding shares in physical farm, the detalls can be used only for e-
voting on the resolutions contained in this Notice,

Click on the EVSN for the relevant <Company Name> on which you choose 1o vote.

On the voling page, you will see "RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION" and against the sama
the option "YES/NO" for voling. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES
implies that you assent to the Resolution and opfion NO implies that you dissent to the
Resolution.

Click on the "RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK® if you wish to view the entire Resolution
details,

After selacling the resolutlon, you have decided to vole on, click on “SUBMIT", A
confirmation box will be displayed. IT you wish to confirm your vote, click on 0K, else 1o
change your voie, click on "CANCEL" and accordingly modify your vate.

Once you "CONFIRM® your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your
vote,
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(xiv)

(xv)

[3wi)

You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on “Click here to print” option on
the Voting page.

if a demat account holder has forgotien the login password then Enter the User ID and
the image wverification code and click on Forgot Password & enler the detalls as
promptad by the system.

Additional Facility for Non — Individual Shareholders and Custodians —For Remote
Voting only.
MNon-Individual shareholders (.2, athar than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians
are required to log on to wwwevolingindia.com and register themselves in the
“Corporates” modube
A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should
be emailed to halpdesk evoling@cdsiindia.com
Aftar receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the admin
login and password. The Compliance User would ba able o link the account{s) for which
they wish to vole on.
The list of accounts linked in  the login should be malled to
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindla.com and on approval of the aceounls they would be abis to
cast their vote,
A scannad copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attornay (POA) which thay have
issued in favour of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the
system for the scrutinizer to varify the sama,

Alternatively Non Individual shareholders are required to send the relevant Board Resolution/
Authority letter elc. logether with atlested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory
whao are authorized (o vole, to the Scrutinizer and o the Company al the amail address viz;
eastwestholais@gmail com (designated email address by company) | if they have voted from
individual tab & not uplcaded sama in the CDSL e-voting system for the scrutinizer o verify the
SAME.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS ATTENDING THE AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM & E-
VOTING DURING MEETING ARE AS UNDER:

1.

The procedure for attending meeting & e-Voiing on the day of the AGM is same as the
instructions mentionad above for e-voling.

The link for VC/IOAVM to attend meating will be available where the EVSN of Company
will be displayed after successful login as per the Instructions mentionad above for a-
voling.

Shareholders who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible o attend the
meeting. However, they will not be eligible to vole at the AGM.

Shareholders are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops [ IPads for better
axpenance.
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5. Further shareholders will be raquired lo allow Camera and usa Intarnal with a good
speed to avoid any disturbance during the meeting.

6. Please nole that Participants Connecling from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through
Laplop connecling via Mobile Hotspol may exparence Audio/Video loss due 1o
Fluctuation in their respective network. It is therafore recommended o use Stable Wi-Fi
or LAN Conneclion to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

7. Shareholders who would like 1o express thelr views/ask guestions during the mesating
may register themselves as a speaker by sending their request in advance atleast? days
prior to meeting mantioning their nama, damat account numberfolio number, email id,
mobile number al (company email id). The shareholders who do not wish to speak
during tha AGM but have gueries may send their queries in advanceTdays prior to
meeating mentioning their name, demat account number/folioc number, email |d, mobila

number at eastwesthotelsi@gmail com. These queries will be replied to by the company
suitably by email.

8. Those shareholders who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed
to express their views/ask gquestions during the meeting.

9. Only those shareholders, who are present in the AGM through VG/OAVM facility and
have not casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Vioting and are
otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vole through e-Voting system
available during the AGM.

10. if any Votes are cast by the shareholders through the e-voting available during the
AGMand if the same shareholders have not participaled in the meeting through
VCIOAVM facility, then the votes cast by such shareholders shall be considared invalid
as the facility of e-voting during the meeting is available only to the shareholders
altending the meaating.

PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE EMAIL/MOBILE NO. ARE NOT
REGISTERED WITH THE COMPANY/DEPOSITORIES,

1. For Physical shareholders- please provide necessary detalls like Folio No.,, Name of
sharaholder, scanned copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self aftested
scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by
amall lo Company/RTA emall id.

2. For Demal shareholders - Please updale your email id & mobile no. with your
respeclive Depository Participant (DP)

3. For Individual Demat shareholders — Please update your emall id & mobile no, with
your respective Depository Participant (DP) which is mandatory while e-\oting & joining
virlual meetings through Depository.

HmeWwWWMMH&&MMMGﬁL&m
Mwumm-'lm'ﬂh aeh avotingd e ool
and 022-23058542/43,

All grievances connected with the facility for voting by electronic means may be addressed to
Mr. Rakesh Dalvi, Sr. Manager, (CDSL, ) Central Depository Services (India) Limited, A Wing,
aﬂ'iFhar WFMMHIMHMMM Lower Parel (East),

mm.
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To,

DIRECTORS' REPORT

The Members,

Your Direclors have pleasure in presenting their 52nd Annual Report on the business and
operations of the Company and the accounts for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2021,

1.Financial summary or highlights / Performance of the Company

Particulars 2020-21 2019-20
Gross Income 1,50,86,134 3,54.94 698
Profit Before Interest, 76,93,456 1,89,85,060
Depreciation & Tax

Interest/Finance Charges 41,18,017 43,968,809
Depreciation 5,38,164 6,087,734
Met Profit Before Tax 30,37,275 1,38,98,517
Provision for Tax 7,84,239 24.51,054
MNet Profit After Tax 22,53,037 1,14,47 463
Balance of Profit brought 14,64.55418 13,95.70,665
forward

Add: Current Year Profit 22,53,037 1,14,47 463
after tax

Proposed Dividend on 8,90,678 35,62.710
Equity Shares

Tax on proposed Dividend - -
Transfer 1o General 5,00,000 10,00,000
Resarve

Surplus carried to Balance 14,7317,776 14.64,55 417
Sheet

2 Brief description of the Company's working during the year / State of Company's affair

1.Gateway Hotel, Bangalore (now known as Taj Vivanta on Residency Road)

The License fee received by your Company during the financial year 2020-21 from M/s Taj
Hotels in respect of Gateway Holel, Bangalore, was Rs 1,45 14 2B4/- as compared to Rs,
3,05,56,732/- in the previous year. The fall in revenue was mainly due to impact of the COVID-
19.pandemic. The first wave and second wave together accounted for closure or disruption
across the hospitality industry for a large part of 20-21, and hence there was a substantial drop in
the Licence Fee eamed from Taj Holels in FY20-21.

2. THEHIVE.CHENNAIL

Hive Chennal was kept open during the year 2020- 2021 for its business operations. However,
due to COVID 2019 the complete working culture has been replaced from office work to work
from home and also the travel has been replaced by ON LINE calls and meetings; due to this the
business operations of the Hotel Industry has been toppled. Even the marketing arrangement
with OYO was a failure as OYD was unable to sell the rooms at the hotel during this year. The
Board is hoping to see better light in terms of hotel business operation in the coming financial
year and will take stock of the situation in the coming days.

-14-
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CHANGE IN THENATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY:
There was no change in the nature of business.

DIVIDEND:

Despite the challenging environment, your Directors have felt that our shareholders
continue to be rewarded for their faith and confidence in the company, and hence your
Directors have recommended a dividend of Rs 2.50 per equity share (Rupee two and paise
fifty) of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up for the year ended 31" March, 2021.

RESERVES:

Similar to previous year, an amount of Rs.5,00,000/- is proposed o be transferred to General
Reserve.
SHARE CAPITAL:

The paid-up equity share capital of the Company stands at Rs. 35,62.710/- comprising of
3,56,271 equity shares of Rs. 10/-each,

The Company has not lssued any Equity Shares / Shares with differential rights during the
year under review.

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL.:

Mr. Jagannathan Surl (DIM: 00265983), who s longest in office, retires by rolation under
Article 119 of the Company's Articles of Association and being eligible, offers himself for re-
appointment. The provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 for appointment of
Independent Directors do nolapply to your Company,

INFORMATION ABOUT SUBSIDIARY/ JV/ASSOCIATE COMPANY:

Company does not have any Subsidiary, Joint veniure or Associate Company.

9. PARTICULARS OF WHOLE-TIME DIRECTOR EMPLOYEES:

10.

1.

Pursuant lo the Companies (Appointmenl and Remuneralion of Managerial Personnel)
Rules, 2014, statement of particulars of employees is annexed as Annexure |.

MEETINGS:

The Board of Directors duly met 6 (Six) times during the financlal year 2020-21 on
15.06.2020, 10.08.2020, 26,10,2020, 18.11.2020, 21.12.2020 and 30.03.2021

AUDITORS:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made
thereunder, the members are to ratify the appointment of M/s. A N Jambunathan & Co.
Chartered Accountants, (Registration No. 0012508), Chennal as Statutory Auditors of the
Company from the conclusion of this annual general meeting till the conclusion of the next
annual genaral meeling as indicated in the Notice of this annual general meeling.
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12. DISCLOSURE ABOUT COST AUDIT:
Cost Audit provisions not applicable to the Company.

13. DETAILS OF POLICY DEVELOPED AND IMPLEMENTED BY THE COMPANY ON
ITS CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY INITIATIVES:

The provisions of the Companes Acl, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder with regard to
Corporate Social Responsibility are not applicable.

14, DISCLOSURE OF COMPOSITION OF AUDIT COMMITTEE AND PROVIDING VIGIL
MECHANISM:

The provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 read wilh Rule & and 7 of the
Companies (Meetings of the Board and its Powers) Rules, 2013 are not applicable to the
Company.

15. INTERNAL AUDIT & CONTROLS:

Tha Company is nolt required to have any internal auditor as the provisions pertaining to
internal Audit is not applicable to the Company. Though the Company does not have an
internal audit, there is internal control systems and procedures in place, having regard 1o the
nature of transactions and size of the Company,

16. ISSUE OF EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTIONS:

The Company has not issued any stock options to employees at anytime in the past and
hence no disclosure is furnished by the Board of Directors in this regard.

17. RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY:

The main risk throughout in financial year 2020-2021 for the entire world was the risk arising
from the Covid-19 pandemic, The company complied with all government guidelines
relating to the pandemic. Fortunately, in the last six month, govt is putting all its effort to
provide vaccination to all which will quickly mitigate the impact of this pandemic. Your
Directors periodically review the various risks which may impact the operations of the
Company.

18. COPY OF ANNUAL RETURN:

Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with read with Rule 12 of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, copy of the Annual Return of
the Company for financial year 2020-21 prepared in accordance with Section 82(1) of the
Act has been placed on the website and is available al http://'www.eastwesthotelsitd.com.
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19.

20.

21.

22,

23,

24,

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, IF ANY, AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL
POSITION OF THE COMPANY WHICH HAVE OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF THE
FINANCIAL YEAR OF THE COMPANY TO WHICH THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RELATE AND THE DATE OF THE REPORT:

There are no Material changes / commitments that occurred during the period from the close
of the financial year of the Company to which the balance sheet relates and the date of the
report. Your Directors are confident that the impact of Covid-19 pandemic on the current
years' operations can be overcome as a normal business cycle of ups and downs. report.

DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS
ORCOURTS ORTRIBUNALS DURING THE YEAR:

There are no significant and material orders passed by the regulators / courts / tribunals
Impacting the Company's operations / stalus.

DEPOSITS:
There are no deposits accapted, unpaid or unclaimed at the beginning / end of the year.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186 :

There are no loans, guarantees or investments made during the year falling under section
186 of the Companies Act, 2013,

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS ORARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES:

The particulars of every contract or arrangements entered into by the Company with related
parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including
certain arm's length transactions under third proviso thereto are disclosed In Form No. AOC-
2. 5ee Annexure I,

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN
EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO;

Your Company is not an energy intensive unit. In the Boutique Hotel, The Hive in Chennai,
the Company has implemented energy saving measures by installing Solar Healer, CFL
Lamps etc. The Company has nat acquired any technology nor was there any technaology
absorption.

Forelgn exchange earnings and Outgo

During the year there was no foreign exchange outgo and there is no foreign exchange
earned

25. DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

In respect of the Directors’ Responsibility Statement referred to in clause (¢} of sub-section
{3) of Section 134 of the Companies Acl, 2013, il is confirmed that—
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(a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have
been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

{b) the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and
made judgmentls and estimales thal are reasonable and prudent so as lo give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and
loss of the company for that period;

{c) the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets
of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and otherirregularities;

{d) the Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and

{e)As the Company is not a listed Company, confirmation re; internal financial controls to be
followed by the company is not applicable. However, there is internal control systems and
procedures in place, having regard to the nature of transactions and size of the Company.

() the Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of
all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

26. TRANSFER OF AMOUNTS TOINVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND :
TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED / UNPAID AMOUNTS TO THE INVESTOR EDUCATION
AND PROTECTION FUND ("IEPF™)

Pursuant to Section 124 and 125 of Companies Act, 2013, and other applicable provisions,
if any, of the aforesaid Act, all unclaimed / unpaid dividend for a period of seven years from
the date they became due for payment, in relation to the Company, has been transferred to
the |EPF eslablished by the Central Government. No claim shall lie against the IEPF or the
Company for the amounts so transferred prior to March 31,2021, nor shall any payment be
made in respect of such claims.

Members who have nol yet encashed their dividend wamant{s) pertaining to the final
dividend for the Financial Year 2013-14 and onwards are requested to make their claims
without any delay. Pursuan! to Section 124(6) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the
Investor Education and Protection Fund Authority (Accounting Audit Transfer and Refund)
Rules, 2016 as amended by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs with effect from 28" February,
2017 ("the Rules”), in case the beneficial owner has not encashed dividend warrant(s)
during the last seven years, the, shares pertaining to such beneficial owners are also
required to be transferred to the Fund established by the Authority.

Shareholdaers are therefore requested to contact Integrated Registry Management
Services Pvl Lid, Registrar and Share Transfer Agenl with respect lo thelr unclaimed
dividends.
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27. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS:

Your Directors wish to place on record their appreciation for the co-operation extended (o
the Company by the sharsholders, Customers, suppliers, employees, service providers,
Bankers and others during the year under review,

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Prem Kumar Menon
Executive Chairman

Place: Bangalore
Date: 03.09.2021
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ANNEXURE Il
UNERATION OF DIRECTORS KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A} REMUN Tl IM IRECTORMWH Tl IRECT
‘Name of Whole-time Director ‘Mr PREM KUMAR MENON
Designation Executive Chairman
REMUNERATION DETAILS
Sl No  Particulars of Remuneration Total
! Amount (Rs)
1 | Gross Salary
a)Salary as per provisions contained in Sec 17(1) of the Income NIL
Tax Act 1961 i :
b)Value of Perquisites under Sec 17(2) of the Income Tax Act NIL
1961
¢)Profits in Lieu of Salary under Sec 17(3) of the Income Tax NIL
Act 1961 -
2 Stock Options NIL
3 | Sweat Equity NIL
4 Commission o
a)As a percentage of Profit 151,864
b) Others NIL
5 Other Remuneration (Sitting Fee) 25,000
6 | Total Remuneration | 176864
B) REMUNERATION TO OTHER DIRECTORS
S| | Particulars of Name of Director Total
| Remuneration Amount
' (Bs) |
Indra Prem Murali Jagannathan
| Menon Ananthasivan | Suri
1 | Board Meeting Sitting 25,000 30,000 30,000 | 85,000
| Fees
2 | Commission NIL NIL | NIL NIL
3 | Others NIL NIL | NIL| NI
4 | Total _ 25,000 | 30,000 | 30,000 | 85,000

C) TOTAL REMUNERATION TG DIRECTORS : Re 2,61,864/-

D} CEILING ON REMUNERATION AS PER THE ACT AT 11% OF PROFITS BEFORE
CHARGING EXECUTIVE CHAIRMAN'S COMMISSION : Rs.3,50,805/-

E) REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL (Other than Directors): NIL

F) PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT/COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES (On Company, Director
and other Officers in Default): NIL
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ANMEXURE Il
FORM NO AOC2

{Pursuant to Clause h of sub-section 3 of Section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of
the Companies Accounts Rules 2014

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts or arrangements entered into by
the company with related parties referred to in subsection 1 of Section 188 of the
Companies Act 2013, including certain arms-length transactions under third

proviso thereto

1) DETAILS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS OR TRANSACTIONS NOT AT
ARMS LENGTH BASIS : NIL

2) DETAILS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS OR TRANSACTIONS AT

ARMS LENGTH BAS|S :

Si | Parliculars Details
1 | Mame of the related Suri Consultants Pvt. Lid. Indra Pram Menon
party and nature of which Mr. Jagannathan Surl,| Director of the Company
relationship a Director, is a Director
2 | Nature of contract Professional Services | Commission recaived |
{arrangement/iransaction on Room sales
3 | Duration of contract Basad on Sarvica Invoica Monthly charges
{arrangameantiiransaction
4 | Salient lerms of the Rs.12,00,000 Rs 18,800
contract [ arrangemeant/
transaction, including the
__| value, if any
5 | Dates of approval by the 30.3.18 On going
Board, If any

Place : Bangalore
Date ; 03.09,2021

For and on behalfl of tha Board of Direclors

Prem Kumar Menon
Executive Chairman
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AN.JAMBUNATHAN & CO.
Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT
Tothe Members of EAST WEST HOTELS LIMITED

Phone: 2811 5244, 2811 7618

New No. 29, [Old No. 13],
Deivasigamani Road, Lakshmipuram,
Royapettah, Chennai- 600014

Report on the audit of the financial statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of East West Hotels Limited,
which comprise the Balance Sheet as al March 31, 2021, and the slatement of Profit and Loss, and
Cash flow Statemant for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information and required by the Companies Act,
2013 (‘Act’) in the manner required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepled in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2021,
its profit and cash follow for the year ended on the date.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards on auditing specified under
Section 143(10) of the Companies Act. 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor's responsibilities, for the audit of the financial statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the code of ethics issued by
the institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirement that are
relevant 1o our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules
thereunder, and we have fulfiled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the code of ethics.

We believe thal the audit evidence we have oblained Is sufficient and appropriale to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Ke i

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement. were of most
significance in our audit of the financlal statements of the current period. These matiers were
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separale opinion on these matters.

Reporting of key audit matters as per SA 701, Key Audit Matters are not applicable to the
Company asitis an unlisted Company.

Information other than the financial statements and Auditors' report thereon

The Company’s board of directors is responsible for the preparation of other information,
The other information comprises the information included in the Board's Report including
Annexures to Board's Report Business Responsibility report but does not include the financial
statements and our Auditor's report thereon.
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Our opinion on the financial statements does nol cover the other information and we do nol
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the standalone financial statements or our knowiedge obtained during course of our audit or
otherwlse appears lo be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatemant of this other Information, we are required (o report that facl. We have nothing to
reportin this regard.

Man ment's responsibility for the financial statements

The Company's board of directors are responsible for the matters staled in Section 134(5)
of the Act with respact to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view
ofthe financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with
the accounting principles generally accepled in India, including the accounting standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of the adeguate accounting records in
accordance with provisions of the Acl for safeguarding of the assels of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgment and estimates thal are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error

In preparing the financial stalements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting uniess management either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial
reparting process.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement. whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misslatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or In the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As a part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also




EAST WEST HOTELS LTD.

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit proceduras responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omission, misrepresentation, or the override of internal control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures thal are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section
143(3)(i) of the Companles Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our
opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls systam in
place and the operating effactiveness of such controls.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainly exists related lo events or conditions thal may cast significant doubt on
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. if we conclude that a material
uncertainly exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. ; However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company o cease to continue as a going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transaclions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation,

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of
the financlal statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materality and qualilative
factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (il) to
evaluate the effect of any identified misstalements in the financial statements.

We communicale with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and o communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, relating safeguards. From the matters communicated with those charged with
gavemance, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters We describe these matters
in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matier should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh
tive public interest benefits of such communication.




EAST WEST HOTELS LTD.

Report on other legal and requlatory requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (1) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013,
we give inAnnexure "A" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.
As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of

(b)
(c)
(d)

(e)

(f)

(@)

(h)

our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of aur audit.;

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as il appears from our examination of those books;

The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss, and the cash flow statement dealt
with by this report are in agreement with the books of account;

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the accounting
standards specified under section 133 of the Acl, read with rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014,

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March
31, 2021 taken on record by the board of directors, none of the directors is disqualified
as on March 31, 2021 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of
the Act.

With respect to the adeguacy of the intemal financial controls over financlal reporting
ofthe Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer lo our separate
report in “Annexure B". Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy
and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial
raporting.

With respect to the other matiers to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance
with the requirements of section 197 (16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance
with the provisions of section 197 of the Act, and

With respect to tha other matters to ba included in the Auditor's Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to
the bestof our informationand according to the explanations given to us;

a. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position inils inancial statements as referred to in Nole 29 and Nole 30

b. The Company did not have any long-lerm contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses; and

c. There has been nodelay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to
the investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company

For AN.Jambunathan & Co.
Chartered Accountants

[Firm Regn No. 0012508]

CAJ. SRINIVAS AN

Place: Bangalore PARTNER
Date: 03.09.2021 MEM NO. 014881
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1. Inrespect of the Company’s fixed assals;

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of flxed assets.

{b) The fixed assets of the Company were physically verified in full by the management during the
year. According to the information and explanations given to us and examined by us, no material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c ) According to the information and explanations given (o us, the title deeds of the immovable
properties included in fixed assets are held in the name of the company.

2. The Company has no stock of finished goods, stores, spare parts and raw materials
during the year and hence physical verification and valuation thereof do not arise.

3. According to information and explanation given to us, the Company has not granted any loan
secured or unsecured to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or other parties covered in
the register required under section 189 of the Companies Acl, 2013. Accordingly, paragraph 3(iii)
of the order is not applicable,

4. In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us, the Company has not
granted any loans or provided any guarantees or given any security or made any investments lo
which the provision of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, paragraph
3(iv) of the order is not applicable.

5. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has
nol accepled any deposits and accordingly paragraph 3(v) of the order is not applicable.

&. The Central Government of India has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under the
sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Act for any of the activities of the company and accordingly
paragraph 3{vi)ofthe orderis notapplicable.

7. Inrespect of statutory dues.

(a) According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, amounts deducted /accrued in the books of account in respect of
undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees’ State Insurance, Income tax,
Salestax, Service tax, Goods and Service tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise, Value Added tax,
cess and other material statutory dues, wherever applicable, have been generally regularly
deposited during the year by the company with the appropriate authorities,

According lo the information and explanation given lo us,; no undisputed amounts payable in
respect of Provident Fund, Employees’ State insurance, Income tax, Goods and Service tax, Duty
of Customs, Duty of excise, Value added tax, cess and other material statutory dues, wherever
applicable, were in arrears as at March 31, 2021 for a period of more than six months from the
date they became payable.

8. In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the company has
no oulstanding dues lo any financial institutions or banks or any Government or any debenture
holders during the vear. Accordingly, paragraph 3{vili) ofthe orderis notapplicable.

8. The Company hias not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments). .
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10. To the best of our knowledge and according o the information and explanation given to us, no
fraud by the Company or no material fraud on the Company by its officers or employees has been
noticed or reported during the year.

11. In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has
paid / provided managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by
the Provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V lo the Act.

12. The Company Is not a Nidhl Company and accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the order is not
applicable to the Company,

13. According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, ransactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 177
and 188 of the Act.  Where applicable, the details of such transactions have been disclosed in
the financial staterments as required by the applicable accounting standards.

14. According to the information and explanation given fo us and on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares of fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly,
paragraph 3(xiv) of the order isnotapplicable.

15. According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors
of persans connected with them. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the order is not applicable.

16. According to the information and explanation given 1o us and based on our examination of the

records ofthe Company, the Company is nol required {o be registered under Section 45-1A of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

FOR AN.JAMBUNATHAN & CO

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

[FRN NO: 0012508]

PLACE:Bangalore J.ERINIVASAN
DATE:03.09.2021 [PARTNER]

[Membership No: 014881]
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ANNEXURE "B "TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

1. We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of East West Hotels
Limited, as of March 31, 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the financial Statements of the
company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility forinternal Financial Controls

2. The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the guidance Note on Audit of
Internal  Financial Controls over financial reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal Financial Controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the arderly and
efficient conduct of its business, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the companies Act, 2013.

Auditor's Responsibility

3. Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over financial Reporting ( the "Guidance Note") issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under
section 143(10) of the Companies Act 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Mote require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit fo obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting were established and maintained and
if such controls operated effectively in all material respects,

4. Qur Audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
Internal financial controls system over financial reporting and thelr operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining and understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error,

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have oblained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial

reporting.
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

6. A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process
designed lo provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statemenis for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepled accounling principles. A company's internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) perain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company ; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary lo permit
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preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,
and that receipts and expenditure of the company are being made only in accordance with the
authorizations of management and direciors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use , or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

7.Because of the inherent limitations of intemal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of callusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be delected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financlal controls over financial reporting Lo fulure periods are subject 1o
the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or thal the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

B. In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given lo us, the
Company has , in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2021, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Charted Accountants of India.

FOR A.N.JAMBUNATHAN & CO
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
[FRN NO: 0012505]

PLACE:Bangalore J SRINIVASAN
DATE:03.09.2021 [PARTHER]
[Membership No: 014881]




EAST WEST HOTELS LTD.

EASTWEST HOTELS LIMITED

Admin Off: No, 3115, 6ih C Main, 13th Cross, HAL 2nd Stage, ndiranagar, Bangatore - 560 D08

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st MARCH 2021

NOTE As at As at
bl NO. 31.03.2021 31.03.2020
EQUITY AND LIABILITEES
1)  Sharcholders' Funds
a#}) Share Capital 1 35,62.710 a5.62.710
b}  Reserves and Surples 2 20,37 4% 284 20,2386 925
2}  'Non-Cumrent Liabilties
a)  Long Term Bomowings 3 3.80,18.275 3,71,38,074
b} Defarred Tax Lisbility Med] 4 20,16.322 16,78,668
¢)  Other Long Term Lisbdities 5 50,00,000 5000000
3) Current Lab#tes
a)  Trade Payables (i 10,37 406 157,858
b} Other Carrent Liabiitiss 7 17.66.431 20,772,521
¢}  Shorl Term Provialons B 64300874 6,62.26.321
TOTAL = 31,74,51,303 31,85,23,076
ASSETS
1)  Non-cument Assols
a) Proparty, Plant & Machinery L] 16,17 86,189 18,23,12 497
b} Capital Work in Progress 10 440,389 2
&) Non-current nvestments " 400,59 8600 4,008,909 600
d) Long Term Loans and Advances 12 20,83 816 20,898,943
&) Ofthar Non-Current Assels 13 1,00.319 77564
2) Current Asssta
a) Cash and Cash Equivalonts 14 2,13,48, 088 103,62 604
b}  Trade Recewvables 15 1,563,642 1,27 48 287
¢}  Short Term Loans and Advances 18 20,B0.230 2069268
d) Other Current Assets 17 £,84.48 611 8,72,13.514
TOTAL 31,74,51,303 31,85,23,076
1 1 [

P - Ban
Dater 03.08.2021

Az par our Report of even dale
For AN Jambunathan & Co.

Charterad Accountants
[Firm Regn Mo, 0012508]

PREM KUMAR MENON INDRAPREM MENOMN A, MURALI CAJ. SRINIVASAN
Exmcutive Directar Dirmalor Direcion PARTNER
DI 00122008 DN 0D121997 D DO00E311 MEM MO, (14881
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EASTWEST HOTELS LIMITED
Admin Off: No. 3115, &ih C Main, 13th Cross, HAL 2nd Siage, indiranagar, Bangadore - 580 008
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH 2021
NOTE XE. Y.E.
PARTICULARS ND. 31.03.2024 31.03.2020
NCOME
a) Revenus from Operations 18 | 1,45.31,084 3.38.18.545
b}  Other Income 19 555,060 | 1,50,B6,134 16,768,153 | 3,54,04 608
TOTAL REVENUE 1,50,86,1 3,54 .94 688
EXPENDITURE
a) Cosfof Materals consumed 20 . 2,385,604
b) Employes Benefits Expanse 21 1.97.574 19,863,983
¢} Finance Costs 2 41,1817 43,598,809
d) Depreciation & Amortisation Expense 23 5.,38,164 687,734
e} Other Expenses 24 ¥1,85,104 1,43.08,961
TOTAL EXPENSE L 1.20.48,859 | 2,15.96.181
Profit befors Exceptional and Extraondinsry 3037275 1,38,98517
ltems and Tax
Exceptions| kema = =
Profit before Extraordinary Bems 3037275 1,38,98.517
Extracrdinary lems - -
Profit Befora Tax 3037275 13888517
Tax Expenses
Curmant Tax T.46 584 24,2817
Defarred Tax a7 654 22 883
784239 24.51,054
Profit For The Yaar 22,853,037 1,14, 47 483
Eamings Per Equity Share
Basic (Rs. 10 per share) 6.32 213
Diluted (Rs. 10 per share) 6.32 3213
Pm:ﬁm(?m Az par our Report of even date
Date: 03.09.2021 For AN Jambunathan & Co.
Chartered Accouniants
| Firm Regn Mo 0012505)
PREM KUMAR MENON INDRA PREM MENON A MURALI CAJ. SRINIVASAN
Exacutive Dirsctor Director Direcior PARTNER
DN 00122008 DM 00121917 DiM: DODD93 11 MEMMNO. 014881
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EASTWEET HOTELS LIMITED, BANGALORE
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.00.2021

Year Ended 31.03.2021 Yoar Ended 11,03,2020

& Carsh B eom Operatng Actilies
Mast Profil bofore tax 3037275 1,38.88 517
Adpsstrment for- Depreciabon 5.38.163 887734

intaresl Incoms (5,65, 060) (12,74 455)

Interesl Expanse 41, 18.017 41.01.130 43 98 B0G 35 12 088
Dperating Profit before Working Gapital changes 138,406 1,770,806
Adisirronts. for
[Irermans )/ Decroasn in Curront Aasiis 11048276 57.15. 837
Increasef{Dacrease) in Caent LiabilSes §20.98 573} B2 49,703 (21,53 616) 3562 721
Caah Geraraled from Operations 16388108 FRFRFT-F. ]
Dineot Tames & Taot on Davidand . . .
Met Cash from Operating Activtiss 1,63 88 108 29272 B4
B. Caph flows rom investing Actlvities
Purchass of Fissd Assals & Capstsl Wiork in Progress 4,52 254) (3,48 60, 723)
Irimresd Rocpaned 11, 72.085 15,04 041
Recsipts from Loans and Advances made o Thed Parties 8.02r 11.50.000
Ivvesiment in Pralerence Shares .
Sake of Foid Asgels = !25,5&! Iu.w‘.ﬂ.m} |.'|".23 OB 282
Mot Cash from investing Acthdites 7.25.868 (7. 23,0628}
G. Cawh fiews lrom Financing Activities
Repayrment of Loans 11,1879 (Z3.10615)
Iviermsi Pasd 18047 (43,88 809)
Buy Back of Equily Shares . -
Dividand Payrmeis (8. 90.678) (35,82, 710y
Loan Recaivad H (61,28 404) = {1,02.81.134)
Met Cash from Flnancing Activities (67,28, 404 {1,002 87, 734)
Mol Incresss(Daeoreasa) in cash & cesh oguiients 105 85,453 (8,15,14 590)
Opsning Cash & Cash Equivalents L LRGS0 | TG TT 184 |
Ciosing Cash & Cash Equivalanis 2,13, 48,088 1.03,62 604
TS,

1) Tha above Cadh Fiow Staemont Has baen prepared under B "indrect Method™ o sot oul inAccounting Standed - 3
"Cash Flow Sigsment

2) The figures of the previous year have been recas!, resranged and regrouped whersver considened necessary.

Place; Ban As per owr Report of even date
Date: 03.09.2021 For AN_lamburathan & Co.
Charterad Accountants
[ Firm Regn No, 0012505]

PREM KUMAR MENON INDRAPREM MENON A, MURALI CAJ. SRINIVAS AN
Executive Direcior Director Direcior PARTNER
DN 0122008 D DO121897 DIM: 00009311 MEMNOD. 014881
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1. SHARE CAPITAL AS AT 31.03.2021 AS AT 31.03.2020
Syithonsed Captal
1200000 Equity Shares of Rs.10 each 1,20,00.,000 1,20,00.000
A0000 - 11% redeemabily cumulative preferance
sharas of Rs 100 each 3,000,000 3,000,000
Issued, Subscribad & Paid Up
3,566,271 Equity Shares of Rs.10 each fully paid up 35,62.710 3562710
| Detalls of Shareholders holding more than 5% of ihe AS AT 31.03.2021 AS AT 31.03.2020
Mame of Shareholde(s ) Mo of shares| Percenlage | No. of shames | Perce
1} Prem Kumar Menon 228275 B63.51 2,26.275 B3151
2)  Alotus Film Gompany Pwt Lid 66,000 18,53 66,000 18.53
Reconcliation of humber of shares AS AT 31.03.2021 AS AT 31.03.2020
Mo. of Shares Rs. No. of Sharas Rs.
Balance as af the beginning of fhe year 356271 3582710 3.56, 271 3582710
Add: Shares ssued - = = z:
Less; Shares Bought back - - - .
Balance as at the end of the year 356271] 3562710 356271 3562710
Other disclosures!

Tha company has one class of equity shares having a par valee of Rs. 10 per share and preference shares having a
par value of R5100 per share. Each shareholder = eSgible for one vote per share held. The dividend proposed by the

Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the sharsholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in the
case of mterim dnvidend. in the event of iguidation of company, the holders of equity shares will be enfitied to receve

any of the remaning assets of the company, after distribution of all preferantal amounts, in propartion Lo thair

sharenokding.

2. RESERVES AND SURPLUS AS AT 31.03.2021 AS AT 31.03.2020
Capllal Reserve 1.00,24 625 1,00,24 625
Capital Redemplion Reserve 21,571,300 21.51.300
Share Premium

Ag par lzst Balance Shoat - -
Less ; Adjusted towards Premium on Buy Back - - - .
Balance in PAL Al
As par last Balance Sheat 146455418 13,85,70 665
Add:  Current year profit 22 53,037 1.14.47 463
Less: DDT on Buy Back of Shares . -
Proposed Dhadend (80067 (35.62 710)
Tax on Distributed Profits - -
Transfer to General Reserve (5.00,0000 | 147317776 {(10,00,000) | 14,64 55418
Ganoral Rosares
Ag per lzst Balance Sheat 4,37 55,583 4,27 55583
Less | Adusted towards Premium on Buy Back ® -
437,655,583 427,556,583
Add: Transfer from PAL 500000 | 4,42 55583 10.00.000| 43755583
20,37 49,284 20,23 BB 925

3. LOAN TERM BORROWINGS AS AT 31.03.2021 AS AT 31.03.2020
Linsecured
Fram Banks
HDFC Loan 3.60,18.275 3.71,38.074

3.60,18,275 371,328,074

1
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4. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY/ ASSET [NET] AS AT 31.03.2021 AS AT 31.03.2020
Opaning Balance 10,78 668 18.55,785
Tax Impact on Timing Diferance

- Defarred tax iability 37.654 22,883
= Deforred tax assel - a7 654 - 22,883
20,186,322 18,78.668

5. OTHER LONG TERM LIABILITEES AS AT 31.03.2021 AS AT 31.03.2020

Other Babiities [Deposil for Licence fees) 50,000,000 50.00.000
50,00,000 50 00,000

6. TRADE PAYABLES AS AT 31.03.2021 AS AT 31.03.2020

Sundry Creditors 10,37 408 1.57 858
10,37 406 1,57, 858

7. OTHER CURRENT LIABLITIES AS AT 11.03.2021 AS AT 31.03.2020
UNCLAIMED DMIDEND
Uncigimed Dividand [EQ 2010-2011) . =
Unclaimed Dividend [EC 2011-2012] - -

Unclaimed Dividand [EQ 2012-2013] 1.82.248 1.82 248

Unclaimed Dividend [EQ 2013-2014] 2,02.268 202 268

Unclaimed Dividend [EQ 2014-2015] 1,81.442 181442

Unciamed Dividend [EQ 2015-2016) 2,23.490 223490

Unclnimead Dividand [EG 2016-2017] 220202 2.20.202

Unclaimed Dividend [ECQ 2017-2018] 241,080 241,080

Unclaimed Dividend [EQ 2018-2018] 2,34,730 2.34,730

Unelaimed Dividand [EQ 2019-2020) 1.24 610 16,29.050 * 15.04.440

TDS Payable 1,37.381 216817

nterest on loan Payable - 3.51.264
1?'!56.43-1 20.?2!521

B. SHORT TERM PROVISIONS AS AT 31.03.2021 AS AT 31.03.2020
Proposad Dividend B8.80.678 35,62, 710
Tax on Distributed Profits - -
Provision for Income tax 6.34,10,196 §.26.63.611

.43 00874 EIEE‘EEIE-E’F

10, CAPITAL WORK IN PROGRESS AS AT 31.03.2021 AS AT 31.03.2020

Work in Progress at Devanahalll Land 4.40,380 -
4 40 389 =

11. NON CURRENT INVESTMENTS AS AT 31.03.2021 AS AT 31.03.2020
Aditya Birla Suniife Mutual Fund (At cost)

[ABSL Equity Plan-B-Growlh-regular plan) 10,00,000 10.00,000

(Market value Rs. 22.93,609.77

Praference Shares Hald in Lakshmanan isola P. Lid 3.99.99.600 3.99.98.600
4.09.99 600 4,09.98.600

12, LONG TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES AS AT 31.03.2021 AS AT 31.03.2020
Oiher daposits 20.83.916 20.99.943

20.93.916 20.99.943
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12.1. OTHER DEPOSITS AS AT 31.03.2021 AS AT 31.03.2020
Daposit with Government Depls 3, 73,080 3.73.080
Daposit with athars 1720826 17.26,853
Securily Deposit . -

2093018 20.90.943

13. OTHER NON CURRENT ASSETS AS AT 31.03.2021 AS AT 31.03.2020

Interest Receivable 1.60.319 T.17.364
100319 L1736
14, CASH AND BANK BALANCES AS AT 31.03.2021 AS AT 31.03.2020
Balance with Banks 20849744 a7 47 475
Cashon hand 48,344 15,128
Cheques on Hand 4 50,000 G.00.000
2,13 48 088 1,03.62.604
14.1 BALANCE WITH BANKS AS AT 31.03.2021 AS AT 31.03.2020
Currenl Accounts 1,24 46,694 281717
Fhod Deposit with Banks 67,79.542 58,64, 857
Dividend Accounts 16,23,504 15.00,841
20849 744 07 47475
BALANCE N UNCLAMED DMDEMDS(In Banks)
Unclaimed Dividend (EQ 2011-2012] - i
Unclaimed Dividend [EQ 2012-2013] 1,80,124 1.80,773
Unclaimed Divdend [EQ 2013-2014) 200,144 200,733
Unclaimed Dhvidend [EQ 2014-2015] 1.91,442 191442
Unclaimed Dividend [EQ 2015-2018] 2,23 400 2,23 400
Unclasmied Divdend [EQ 2016-2017) 227804 2,28 553
Unclaimed Dividend [EQ 2017-2018 241,060 241,060
Unclaimed Dividond [EQ 2018-2018 234,730 2.34.730
Unclaimed Dividend [EQ 2019-202(0] 124610 -
16,23 504 15,0{.841
CURRENT ACCOUNTS
State Bank of India Bangalona 1.11,48.583 10,11,958
State Bank of India Chennai 5,969 5,968
State Bank of Indla Channs 6,21,568 824,164
indian Owversess Bank, Bangatore 1,80,640 153,779
ndian Chersess Bank, Chennal 7.200 7,200
HODFC BANK Lid,, MG Road 28214 28214
HDFC BANK Lid., Chennal 27,166 27,108
HDFC BANK Lid,, Chennai 68,183 69,068
Axis Bank, Chennea. 3,58,128 3,53.220
1,24 46 608 2281777
15. TRADE RECEIVABLES AS AT 31.03.2021 AS AT 31.03.2020
Sundry Debtors 1,63.842 1,27 48287

1,53 642

1,27 48287

16, SHORT TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES AS AT 31.03.2021 AS AT 31.03.2020
Considered good in respect of which the com pany
holds no secunty other than Debtors personal securnty - -
Advance for Purchase of Land - -
Loans & Advences 20,80,239 20,69.268
20 80,239 20,69 268
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17. OTHER CURRENT ASSETS AS AT 31.03.2021 AS AT 31.03.2020
T Advance Tax 39724731 383747TH
Tax Deducted al Source(EWH) 4 B9,17.994 4,18.02,725
Tax Deducted at Source{ The Hive) 245945 238,640
Prepaid sxpenses 3.536 7.282
Duties & Taxes (4,43,.2496) (2,09 864)
8,84 48 811 8.72.13.514
18. REVENUE FROM OFPERATIONS AS AT 31.03.2021 AS AT 31.03.2020
Sale of Senice - Licence fees 1.45,14 284 3,05,56,732
THE HVE:
Commission on Room Salas 16,800 -
Room Sales - 28,84 663
Food & Bevarage Sales - 2,289,001
Laundry Income - 16,800 48058 | 3261813
1.45,31.084 3,38.18.545
15. OTHER INCOME AS AT 31.03.2021 AS AT 31.03.2020
intarest racelved 5.55,050 12,74 455
Cradit balances writtan back - 2,76.283
Miscallaneous Income - 25415
Contract Compansation - 1.00.000
5,55.050 16,786,153
20, COST OF MATERIAL CONSUMED AS AT 31.03.2021 AS AT 31.03.2020
Food & Beverage Expensas - 238,694
: 238694
21. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE AS AT 31.03.2021 AS AT 31.03.2020
Staff remuneration and welfare expansas 1.87.574 1963983
(& inciudes Commision o Exscutive Chalrmman
for Rs.1,5%,864/9 167,574 15.63.983
21.1. STAFF REMUNERATION AND WELFARE EXPENSES AS AT 31.03.2021 AS AT 31.03.2020
Salanes 1o staff 1.51,864 19.20.942
Staff Wellare 45710 43,041
1,87 674 18,63 .943
22. FNANCE COSTS AS AT 31.03.201 AS AT 31.03.2020
Bank - Interes! paid 41,18,017 43,898,808
41,18.017 43,098 809
23. DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSE AS AT 31.03.2021 AS AT 31.03.2020
Depreciation
5,38, 164 6,87.734
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24, OTHER EXPENSES AS AT 31.03.2021 AS AT 31.03.2020
Operating expenses 1.96.700 4 63833
Power, Fuel and Water charges 08,726 4,956,060
insurance - T7.840
Dronation 1,70,000 1,80.000
Rent 18,67.833 31,08.326
Repairs to Buildings 2,189,382 720976
Repars & Renewals 3,26.285 2,97 560
Rales & Taxes 1,67.183 1,80.136
Entertainment expenses 13,325 10,14,530
Adverttsemaent and Businass Promotion 1.01.078 203,776
Legal and Professional Consultancy Charges 18,41.200 31,44 800
Travelling Expensas 3,65,011 15,823,256
Miscellansous expensas 7,89.174 11,198,376
Paymant to Statulory Auditors 2,37.000 228818
Viehicle Maintenance 4,15.708 502,036
Administrative axpenses 2,86 388 995033

71,95104 1,43,06.961
24.1. Operating expenses AS AT 31.03.2021 AS AT 31.03.2020
- Housakseping tems 1.96,700 284979
- Laundry Chargas - 1.03 665
. Linen Alc { Expanses) - _ 74,985
1.96.700 4,63.633
24.2. Power, Fuel & Water Charges AS AT 31.03.2021 AS AT 31.03.2020
- Power, Fusl and Gas - 16,160
- Eleciricity Charges 85,804 463634
- Water Chargas 12,831 13,275
98725 | 496069
24.3, Payment to Statutory Auditors: AS AT 31.03.2021 AS AT 31.03.2020
Aa Agiclitor 1,560,000 1,560,000
Rembursament of Audit expenses 87,000 78,615
2.37.000 2.28.615
24.4. Admintrative expenses: AS AT 31.03.2021 AS AT 31.03.2020
Prirding & Stationery 306,295 78.503
Postage, Telegram & Telaphaone 1,20,603 2,16,804
- Commission . 3.06.305
-  Bank Charges 18,832 11,018
- Sitting feas 1,10,000 1.00,000
- Compuler mamianance - 16,668
- Cable TV Ac . 51,750
= Diesael Nic : 13,500
- Repairs 1o Electricals Alc 5,658 1.33,383
- Repairs to Fumitura Afc - -
- Repairs to Plant & Machinery. Alc . 60,242
- Repairs to Plumbing Alc . 16,850
ZIE"E JB8 9.85,033
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25,

26.

27.

East West Hotels Limited

Motes Forming Part of Accounts as on 31st March, 2021

Corresponding figures of the previous year have been rearranged and regrouped wharaver
necessary to conform to the year's presentations, and figures have been rounded off to the
nearesirupee,

In the opinion of the Board, in the ordinary course of business the current assets, loans and
advances have avalue on reallzation at the amount stated In the Balance Shaeal.

Significant Accounting Policies

a.

Basis of Preparation:

The financial statements of the company have been prepared in accordance with the
generally accepled accounting principles in India (Indian GAAP) to comply with the
Accounting standards applicable under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and the relevant
provision of the Companies Act, 2013 as applicable. The financial statements have been
prepared on accrual basis and under the historical cost convention. The accounting
policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements are consistent with those of
Previous year,

Prasentation and disclosure offinancial statements:

Assets and liabilities have been classified as Current and Non — Current as per
company's normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in the schedule lll of the
Companies act, 2013.

Uses of Estimates:

The preparatlion of the financial statements, in conformily with the
generally accepted accounting principles (Indian GAPP) requires the management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported balances of assets and
liabilittes as of the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of income and
expense during the period. Management believes thal the estimates used in the
preparation of financial statements are prudent and reasonable. Actual results could differ
from those eslimates

Revenue Recognition:
Income is accounted for on Accrual or Mercantile basis,

Fixed Assets:All Fixed assets are valued al Cos! of acquisition less accumulated
depreciation. The Company follows written down value method for providing depreciation
in respect of all fixed assets as per the estimated useful life prescribed in Schedule Il to
the Companies Act, 2013. In respect of all deletions and additions during the year,
depreciation is provided on pro-rata basis.
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Investments:

Investments are classified into non-current and current investments. Non-Current
Investments are camed at cost less diminution other than temporary. Provision for
diminution, if any in the value of each long-lerm invesiment is made to recognize a decline,
other than of a temporary nature. Current investments, if any, at cost or realizable value
whicheveris less.

Retirement Benefits:

1) Contribution, if any, to Provident Fund is charged off lo revenue.
2) Gratuity, if any applicable, will be recognized as and when falls due and no
provision is made in the accounts.

Provision for Taxation:

Tax on income for the current period is determined on the basls of taxable income and tax
credit is computed in accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961 and
based on expected oculcome of assessmenis/appeals.

Deferred Tax is recognized on timing differences between the accounting income and the
taxable income for the year and quantified using the tax rates and laws enacted or
substantively enacted as on the Balance Sheet date.

Deferred Tax assels are recognized and carried forward to the extent that there is a
reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be available againsl which
such deferred tax assets can be realized.

The Company has adopted Accounting Standard 22 (AS-22) 'Accounting for Taxes on
Income' and accordingly the Company has provided for deferred tax during the year which
has resulted in net deferred tax liability of Rs. 37,654/- for the year.

Provisions and Contingent Liabilities:

Provisions are recognized in the financial statements in respect of a present obligation
arising from a past event, the amount of which can be reliably estimated Contingent
Liabilities are not provided and are disclosed by way of notes to accounts in respect of
possible obligations that arise from past events but their existence is confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not whally within the
control of the company.

Leases:
In respect of Asset, if any, acquired under lease, where a significant portion of the risks and

rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor, is classified as operating lease and the
lease rentals are charged to the Profit & Loss accounton accrual basis.




EAST WEST HOTELS LTD.

28.

29.

30.

M.

Remuneration to Executive Chairman:

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
[in Ris] [InRs]
Salary -- -
Commission 1,651,864 6.,94,926
Sitting Fees 25,000 20,000

Expenditure in Foreign Currency:
Towards foreign travel NIL 4.44 850
Loans and Advances, Deposits & Creditors:

The balances of Loans and Advances, deposits and creditors are taken on the basis of book
figures and are subject to confirmation.

Income Tax Matters

Asst, years 2005-06; 2007-08; 2008-09; 2009-10 and 2010-11

The ITAT, Bangalore by its consolidated order in ITANo. 324 to 328/Bang/14 for Asst. years
2005-08, 2007-08 to 2010-11, remanded the case for all these years to the CIT (Appeals)
directing the CIT{A) to reckon the characierization of the license fee (whether income from
other sources or income from house property) and allow deductions accordingly. The matter
is pending adjudication before the CIT (A), Bangalore. After adjustment of taxes paid/refund,
there is no disputed tax payable in respect of these years..

Asst. year 2011-12;

The Income lax Appellate Tribunal by its order in ITA 87/Bang/2017 dt. 4-8-2018 following its
earlier orders in respect of asst, years 2005-06, 2007-08 to 2010-11 has remanded the case
to the CIT{A) o reckon the characterization of the license fee (whether income from other
sources or income from house property) and allow deductions accordingly. The matter is
pending adjudication before the CIT (A), Bangalore. After adjustment of taxes paid/refund,
there is no disputed tax payable in respect of this year.

Asst, year 2013-14;

The AOQ, by her order dt. 31-3-2016 under section 143(3), has disallowed the claim of the
company that the license fee should be assessed under the head “Income from property” and
chosen lo assess the same under the head “olher sources” and in the process has made an
addition of Rs. 1,25,22, 535/ to the returned income, The Company has filed an appeal before
the CIT (A), Bangalore. Order is awaited. The additional demand, after adjustment of refunds
of earlier years, amounts to Rs. 19, 83,197/-

e 14-15:

The AQ by his order 25-10-2016 under section 143(3) of the Income tax Act has made an
addition of Rs. 1,02,22,209/- by holding that the license fee income is assessable under the
head “Income from Other Sources™ as against the claim of the Company that the same is
assessable under the head “Income from House Property”. The Company has preferred an
appeal befare the CIT (A), Bangalore and order is awaited. However there is no tax payable
for this year as per the asst. ordar.
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32. As perthe order received from High court of Kerala, the case relating to Land Acquisition Act
[LA Appeal no.523 of 2011] has been disposed of on 1" day of August 2018 in favor of the
company, re-fixing the value of land of 53 ARES at Rs. 12,36,000/- per ARE and the company
Is also entitled to other statutory benefits.The company’s legal advisors have advised the
company thal the onward procedure is thal the company has to make an application lo the
EXECUTION COURT for determination of the final compensation amount, including interest
and other statutory benefits. The said application to the Execution Court has aiready been
made and is in process.

33. Related Party Disclosures;
As per AS-18 "Related Party Disclosures™ Transactions with related parties are as under:
Amount as
. . Malure of on
Name of the Related Party Relationship Transaction 31.03.2021
[in Rs.]
Managerial
! Remuneration in
1. MrPrem Kumar Menon Executive Chairman tha fekemiy of 1.51,864
commission
2. Mfs. Suri Consuftants .
Private Limited Common Direclors Consullancy 12,00,000
3 Mr. Prem Kumar Menon Executive Chairman Sitting fee 25,000
4. Mrs.Indra Prem Menon Director Sitting fee 25,000
5. J. Suri Diractor Sitting fea 30,000
6. AMurali - Director Sitting fee 30,000 |
7. Mrs.IndraPrem Menon Director Is a Proprietrix |Commission received 16,800
on Room Sales
34. Calculation of profit under section 197 of Companies act, 2013 for computation of managerial
remuneration:
Met Profit as per Profit & Loss Account Rs. 30,37.275
Add: Commission to Executive Chalrman Rs. 1,51.864
Total Rs. 31,89,139
Managerial Remuneration by way of Commission
Payable to Executive Chairman
[31,89,138x 5M105] Rs.1,51,864
For A.N. Jambunathan& Co
Charterad Accountants
[Firm Reg. no. 00125053]
Prem Kumar Menon Indra Prem Menon A. Murali CA.J.Srinivasan
Executive Direclor Director Director Partner
DIN: 00122008 DIN: 00121917 DiIN: 00008311 [Membership No.014881]
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FORM NO. MGT-7

[Pursuant to sub-Section(1) of section 92 of
the Companies Act, 2013 and sub-rule (1) of
rule 11of the Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014]

Form language (@ English (O Hindi
Refer the instruction kit for filing the form.

. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS
(i) * Corporate Identification Number (CIN) of the company

Global Location Number (GLN) of the company
* Permanent Account Number (PAN) of the company

(il) (a) Name of the company

(b) Registered office address

Companies)

Annual Return
(other than OPCs and Small

U55101KA1969PLCO01795 Pre-fill

AABCE08778B

EASTWEST HOTELS LIMITED

66,RESIDENCY ROAD,
BANGALORE
Bangalore

Karnataka

560025

(c) “e-mail ID of the company
(d) *Telephone number with STD code

(e) Website

eastwesthotels@gmail.com

08025253871

(iii)

(iv)

(v) Whether company is having share capital

(vi) *Whether shares listed on recognized Stock Exchange(s)

Date of Incorporation

23/05/1969

Type of the Company

Category of the Company

Sub-category of the Company

Public Company

Company limited by shares

Indian Non-Government company

(b) CIN of the Registrar and Transfer Agent

Name of the Registrar and Transfer Agent

(® Yes O No
O Yes @® No

U74900TN2015PTC101466 Pre-fill |
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INTEGRATED REGISTRY MANAGEMENT SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED

Registered office address of the Registrar and Transfer Agents

2nd Floor Kences Towers ,1 Ramakrishna Street
North Usman Road T Nagar

(vii) *Financial year From date

(viii) *Whether Annual general meeting (AGM) held

(a) If yes, date of AGM

(b) Due date of AGM

01/04/2020

(c) Whether any extension for AGM granted

(DD/MM/YYYY) To date
® Yes

31/03/2021
O No

O Yes ® No

Il. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

*Number of business activities

—_

(DD/MM/YYYY)

Hotel, Inns, Resorts, holiday homes, hostel,

S.No ([Main Description of Main Activity group |Business  |Description of Business Activity % of turnover
Activity Activity of the
group code Code company
. . Accommodation services provided by
1 | Accommodation and Food Service |[1 100

lll. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
(INCLUDING JOINT VENTURES)

*No. of Companies for which information is to be given |0

Pre-fill All |

S.No

Name of the company

CIN/FCRN

Holding/ Subsidiary/Associate/
Joint Venture

% of shares held

1

IV. SHARE CAPITAL, DEBENTURES AND OTHER SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

(i) *“SHARE CAPITAL
(a) Equity share capital

Total number of equity shares

1,200,000 356,271 356,271 356,271
Total amount of equity shares (in 145 109900 |3,562,710 3,562,710 3,562,710
Rupees)

Number of classes
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Number of equity shares 1,200,000 356,271 356,271 356,271
Nominal value per share (in rupees) 10 10 10 10
Total amount of equity shares (in rupees) 12.000.000 3562 710 3562 710 3562 710

(b) Preference share capital

Total number of preference shares
30,000

Total amount of preference shares

(in rupees) 3,000,000

Number of classes

Number of preference shares

30,000
Nominal value per share (in rupees) 100 100 100 100
Total amount of preference shares (in rupees) 3,000,000 0 0 0

(c) Unclassified share capital

Total amount of unclassified shares

(d) Break-up of paid-up share capital

Equity shares Physical | DEMAT | Total
At the beginning of the year
30,024 326,247 356271 3,562,710 (3,562,710

Increase during the year 0 0 0 0 0 0
i. Pubic Issues

0 0 0 0 0 0
ii. Rights issue

0 0 0 0 0 0
iii. Bonus issue

0 0 0 0 0 0
iv. Private Placement/ Preferential allotment

0 0 0 0 0 0
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v. ESOPs

Preference shares

0 0 0 0 0
vi. Sweat equity shares allotted

0 0 0 0 0
vii. Conversion of Preference share 0 0 0 0 0
viii. Conversion of Debentures

0 0 0 0 0
ix. GDRs/ADRs 0 0 0 0 0
x. Others, specify
Decrease during the year 0 0 0 0 0
i. Buy-back of shares

0 0 0 0 0
ii. Shares forfeited

0 0 0 0 0
iii. Reduction of share capital

0 0 0 0 0
iv. Others, specify
At the end of the year

30,024 326,247 356271 3,562,710 | 3,562,710

At the beginning of the year

0 0 0 0 0
Increase during the year

0 0 0 0 0
i. Issues of shares

0 0 0 0 0
ii. Re-issue of forfeited shares

0 0 0 0 0
iii. Others, specify
Decrease during the year 0 0 0 0 0
i. Redemption of shares

0 0 0 0 0
ii. Shares forfeited 0 0 0 0 0
iii. Reduction of share capital

0 0 0 0 0
iv. Others, specify
At the end of the year 0 0 0 0 0

ISIN of the equity shares of the company
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(ii) Details of stock split/consolidation during the year (for each class of shares) 0

Class of shares (i) (i) (iif)

Number of shares

Before split /

Consolidation Face value per share

Number of shares

After split /

Consolidation Face value per share

(iii) Details of shares/Debentures Transfers since closure date of last financial year (or in the case
of the first return at any time since the incorporation of the company) *

X] Nil
[Details being provided in a CD/Digital Media] O VYes O No (O Not Applicable
Separate sheet attached for details of transfers O VYes O No

Note: In case list of transfer exceeds 10, option for submission as a separate sheet attachment or submission in a CD/Digital
Media may be shown.

Date of the previous annual general meeting

Date of registration of transfer (Date Month Year)

Type of transfer 1 - Equity, 2- Preference Shares,3 - Debentures, 4 - Stock
Number of Shares/ Debentures/ Amount per Share/
Units Transferred Debenture/Unit (in Rs.)

Ledger Folio of Transferor

Transferor's Name

Surname middle name first name

Ledger Folio of Transferee
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Transferee's Name

Surname

middle name

first name

Date of registration of transfer (Date Month Year)

Type of transfer

1 - Equity, 2- Preference Shares,3 - Debentures, 4 - Stock

Units Transferred

Number of Shares/ Debentures/

Amount per Share/

Debenture/Unit (in Rs.)

Ledger Folio of Transferor

Transferor's Name

Surname middle name first name
Ledger Folio of Transferee
Transferee's Name
Surname middle name first name
(iv) "Debentures (Outstanding as at the end of financial year)
Particulars Number of units Nominal value per Total value
unit
Non-convertible debentures
0 0 0
Partly convertible debentures
0 0 0
Fully convertible debentures
0 0 0
Total
0

Details of debentures
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Class of debentures

Outstanding as at
the beginning of the

Increase during the
year

Decrease during the
year

Outstanding as at
the end of the year

year
Non- ible deb
on-convertible debentures 0 0 0 0
Partly convertible debentures
0 0 0 0
Fully convertible debentures
0 0 0 0

(v) Securities (other than shares and debentures)

0

Type of Number of Nominal Value of  |Total Nominal Paid up Value of |Total Paid up Value
Securities Securities each Unit Value each Unit
Total

V. *Turnover and net worth of the company (as defined in the Companies Act, 2013)

(i) Turnover

(ii) Net worth of the Company
VI. (a) *SHARE HOLDING PATTERN - Promoters

14,531,084

207,311,994

S. No. Category Equity Preference
Number of shares Percentage Number of shares| Percentage
1. Individual/Hindu Undivided Family
(i} Indian 226,275 63.51 0
ii) Non-resident Indi NRI
(ii) Non-resident Indian (NRI) 0 0 0
(iii) Foreign national (other than NRI) 0 0 0
5 Government
(i) Central Government
0 0 0
(ii) State Government
0 0 0
(iii) Government companies
0 0 0
Insurance companies
3. 0 0 0
Banks
4, 0 0 0
Financial institutions
5. 0 0 0

Page 7 of 14



Foreign institutional investors

6. & 0 0 0
Mutual funds

7. 0 0 0
Venture capital

8. 0 0 0
Body corporate

9. (not mentioned above) 66,000 18.53 0

10. Others 0 0 0

Total
292,275 82.04 0 0
Total number of shareholders (promoters) 2
(b) “SHARE HOLDING PATTERN - Public/Other than promoters
S. No. Category Equity Preference
Number of shares Percentage Number of shares Percentage

1. Individual/Hindu Undivided Family
(i) Indian 48,756 13.69 0
ii) Non-resident Indian (NRI
(i) ! fan (NRI) 162 0.05 0
iii) Foreign national (other than NRI
(iii) g ( ) 0 0 0

5 Government
(i) Central Government

0 0 0
i) State G t
(ii) State Governmen 0 0 0
(iii) Government companies
0 0 0

Insurance companies

3. 0 0 0
Banks

4, 0 0 0
Financial institutions

5. 0 0 0
Foreign institutional investors

6. 0 0 0
Mutual funds

7. 0 0 0
Venture capital

8. 0 0 0
Body corporate

9. (not mentioned above) 2,010 0.56 0

10. Others IEPF 13,068 3.67 0
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Total

63,996 17.97

Total number of shareholders (other than promoters)

Total number of shareholders (Promoters+Public/

Other than promoters)

676

678

VIIL. *“NUMBER OF PROMOTERS, MEMBERS, DEBENTURE HOLDERS
(Details, Promoters, Members (other than promoters), Debenture holders)

Promoters 9 9
Members

(other than promoters) 677 676
Debenture holders 0 0

VIII. DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

(A) *Composition of Board of Directors

Category Number of directors at the Number of directors at the end | Percentage of shares held by
beginning of the year of the year directors as at the end of year
Executive | Non-executive| Executive |Non-executive| Executive | Non-executive
A. Promoter
1 0 1 0 63.51 0
B. Non-Promoter
0 3 0 3 0 1.46
(i) Non-Independent
0 3 0 3 0 1.46
i) Independent
(1) Indep 0 0 0 0 0 0
C. Nominee Directors
representing 0 0 0 0 0 0
(1) Banks & FIs
0 0 0 0 0 0
(i1) Investing institutions
0 0 0 0 0 0
(i) Government
0 0 0 0 0 0
(iv) Small share holders
0 0 0 0 0 0
(v) Others
0 0 0 0 0 0
Total
1 3 1 3 63.51 1.46

Number of Directors and Key managerial personnel (who is not director) as on the financial year end date |4
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(B) (i) *Details of directors and Key managerial personnel as on the closure of financial year

Name DIN/PAN Designation Number of equity Date of cessation (after closure of
share(s) held financial year : If any)
MURALI ANANTHASIV. 00009311 Director 5
INDRA MENON PREM 00121917 Director 4,707
PREMKUMAR MENON 00122008 Whole-time directa 226,275
JAGANNATHAN SURI 00265983 Director 505
(ii) Particulars of change in director(s) and Key managerial personnel during the year 0
Name DIN/PAN Designation at the |Date of appointment/

Nature of change (Appointment/

beginning / during |change in designation/ Change in designation/ Cessation)

the financial year  [cessation

IX. MEETINGS OF MEMBERS/CLASS OF MEMBERS/BOARD/COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS

A. MEMBERS/CLASS /REQUISITIONED/NCLT/COURT CONVENED MEETINGS

Number of meetings held 1

Total Number of Attendance
Type of meeting Date of meeting Members entitled to
attend meeting Number of members % of total
attended shareholding
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETI 21/12/2020 679 8 87.08
B. BOARD MEETINGS
*Number of meetings held |g
Total Number of directors Attendance
S. No. Date of meeting associated as on the date
of meeting Number of directors
attended % of attendance

1 15/06/2020 4 4 100
2 10/08/2020 4 4 100
3 26/10/2020 4 2 50
4 18/11/2020 4 4 100
5 21/12/2020 4 4 100
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Total Number of directors Attendance
S. No. Date of meeting associated as on the date
of meeting Number of directors
attended % of attendance
6 30/03/2021 4 4 100

C. COMMITTEE MEETINGS

Number of meetings held

Attendance
S N Type of Total Number
. No. .
meeting Date of meetin of Members as
9lon the date of Number of members
the meeting attended % of attendance
1
D. *ATTENDANCE OF DIRECTORS
Board Meetings Committee Meetings Whether
attended AGM
s. Name Number of Number of held on
No. | of the director |Meetings whichNumber of % of Meetings which|Number of % of
director was Meetings aitendance director was Meetings aitendance
entitled to attended entitled to attended
attend attend
(Y/N/NA)
1 MURALI ANAI 6 6 100 0 0 0
2 INDRA MENO 6 5 83.33 0 0 0
3 PREMKUMAF 6 5 83.33 0 0 0
4 JAGANNATH 6 6 100 0 0 0
X. *FREMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
[] Nil
Number of Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager whose remuneration details to be entered
S. No. Name Designation Gross Salary Commission Stock Option/ Others Total
Sweat equity Amount
1 PREMKUMAR MENWhole Time Dire 0 151,864 0 25,000 176,864
Total 0 151,864 0 25,000 176,864
Number of CEO, CFO and Company secretary whose remuneration details to be entered
S. No. Name Designation Gross Salary Commission Stock Option/ Others Total
Sweat equity Amount
1 0
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S. No. Name Designation Gross Salary Commission SStv?/:I;toeF;tlij(i)tr;// Others A-Ir;%tilnt
Total
Number of other directors whose remuneration details to be entered 3
S. No. Name Designation Gross Salary Commission SStv(\)/:I;toe‘thliﬁt?// Others A-ln—q(z[ﬁLt
1 MURALI ANANTH Director 0 0 0 30,000 30,000
2 |INDRA MENON P Director 0 0 0 25,000 25,000
3 JAGANNATHAN Director 0 0 0 30,000 30,000
Total 0 0 0 85,000 85,000
XI. MATTERS RELATED TO CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCES AND DISCLOSURES
* A. Whether the company has made compliances and disclosures in respect of applicable@ Yes O No

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 during the year

B. If No, give reasons/observations

XIll. PENALTY AND PUNISHMENT - DETAILS THEREOF

(A) DETAILS OF PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT IMPOSED ON COMPANY/DIRECTORS /OFFICERS X Nil

Name of the concerned
company/ directors/ |Authority
officers

Name of the court/

Date of Order

Name of the Act and
section under which
penalised / punished

Details of penalty/
punishment

Details of appeal (if any)
including present status

(B) DETAILS OF COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES  [] NIl

Name of the concerned
company/ directors/ |Authority
officers

Name of the court/

Date of Order

Name of the Act and
section under which
offence committed

Particulars of
offence

Rupees)

Amount of compounding (in

XIll. Whether complete list of shareholders, debenture holders has been enclosed as an attachment

® Yes O No
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XIV. COMPLIANCE OF SUB-SECTION (2) OF SECTION 92, IN CASE OF LISTED COMPANIES

In case of a listed company or a company having paid up share capital of Ten Crore rupees or more or turnover of Fifty Crore rupees or
more, details of company secretary in whole time practice certifying the annual return in Form MGT-8.

Name

Whether associate or fellow O Associate O Fellow

Certificate of practice number

I/We certify that:

(a) The return states the facts, as they stood on the date of the closure of the financial year aforesaid correctly and adequately.

(b) Unless otherwise expressly stated to the contrary elsewhere in this Return, the Company has complied with all the provisions of the
Act during the financial year.

Declaration

| am Authorised by the Board of Directors of the company vide resolution no. .. dated 03/09/2021

(DD/MM/YYYY) to sign this form and declare that all the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder
in respect of the subject matter of this form and matters incidental thereto have been compiled with. | further declare that:

1. Whatever is stated in this form and in the attachments thereto is true, correct and complete and no information material to
the subject matter of this form has been suppressed or concealed and is as per the original records maintained by the company.

2. All the required attachments have been completely and legibly attached to this form.

Note: Attention is also drawn to the provisions of Section 447, section 448 and 449 of the Companies Act, 2013 which provide for
punishment for fraud, punishment for false statement and punishment for false evidence respectively.

To be digitally signed by

Director

DIN of the director 00122008

To be digitally signed by

(O Company Secretary

@ Company secretary in practice

Membership number 15718 Certificate of practice number 8715
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Attachments List of attachments

1. List of share holders, debenture holders Attach
2. Approval letter for extension of AGM,; Attach
3. Copy of MGT-8; Attach
4. Optional Attachement(s), if any Attach

| Remove attachment |

This eForm has been taken on file maintained by the Registrar of Companies through electronic mode and on
the basis of statement of correctness given by the company
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